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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
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603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501 
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May 31,2019 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to 
enter into an agreement with HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. (Vendor # 166709-B001 }, 2 Blacksmith 
Street, Lebanon, New Hampshire 03766, to provide community-based harm reduction services and 
supports to individuals who are in crisis related to their opioid use or post opioid overdose and co­
occurring medical diseases, in an amount not to exceed $50, 109, effective upon Governor and Executive 
Council approval, through November 30, 2019. 100% Federal Funds. 

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipated to be 
available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating 
budgets, with authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances 
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified. 

05-95-090-902510-70390000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH 
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH 
CRISIS RESPONSE 

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title 
Activity/Job 

Total Amount 
Number 

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703901 $26,144 

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703901 $23,965 

Total $50,109 
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EXPLANATION 

The purpose of this request is to have the Contractor provide community-based harm reduction 
services and supports to individuals who are in crisis related to their opioid use or post opioid overdose 
and co-occurring medical diseases in the areas of Claremont, neighboring towns in Sullivan County, 
including, but not limited to Newport, Cornish, Croydon and Charlestown. 

Approximately 40 to 50 individuals will be served from date of the Governor and Executive Council 
approval through November 30, 2019. 

The State of New Hampshire is in the midst of an opioid overdose epidemic. In 2018, New 
Hampshire had 397 opioid-related deaths, and 6,684 emergency department opioid related visits, of 
which 2,774 were emergency naloxone (Narcan) administrations. New Hampshire is ranked as having 
the third highest overdose rate, in the country, at 39 individuals per 100,000 population. Providing harm 
reduction services to people with substance use disorder supports a statewide effort to decrease negative 
health outcomes, including the spread of infectious disease, related to substance misuse. 

The Contractor will utilize education in their program to assist individuals in gaining knowledge 
and making informed decisions about their own health. Services will include, but are not limited to, 
referrals to medical, mental health and substance misuse treatment social services, offering 
transportation to follow-up appointments to ensure linkage to care, assisting individuals on applying for 
health insurance and getting into treatment, providing support during the individual's transition to medical 
care and ensuring that expanded services are offered. 

The Contractor will provide expanded services which include, but are not limited to, written and 
verbal education about safe drug injection practices, reversing a drug overdose; HIV prevention, viral 
hepatitis, and sexually transmitted diseases testing, treatment and care services; medical and mental 
health treatment options, substance use disorder treatment including medical and assisted treatment and 
proper use of male and female condoms. 

The Contractor will provide referral activities to enhance the integration of community-based 
services to reduce infectious disease transmission and reduce injected drug use, including services for 
the prevention of mother-to-child infectious disease transmission, Hepatitis A and B vaccine, ensuring 
the mother is receiving prenatal medical care, working with pregnant clients who are not in medical care 
to help dismantle barriers to receiving care. 

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the 
agreement: 

• Ninety-five percent (95%) of newly identified HIV positive individuals will be inked to 
medical care within thirty (30) days of receiving a positive test result; 

• Ninety-five (95%) of newly identified HCV antibody positive individuals who do not receive 
a Ribonucleic Acid (RNA) test at the time of antibody-screening, shall have a documented 
referral to medical care, at that time; 

• Ninety-five percent (95%) of individuals utilizing Harm Reduction Services shall utilize one 
( 1) or more Harm Reduction Services per visit; 

• The contractor shall offer referrals to social service, HIV, HCV and STD testing, 
medical/mental health and medication-assisted treatment referrals for fifty percent (50%) 
of their individuals and confirm linkage. 
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HIVIHCV Resource Center, Inc. was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. 
A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services' website from 
October 24, 2018 through November 16, 2018. The Department received two (2) proposals. The 
proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-specific knowledge. The 
Summary Score Sheet is attached. 

As referenced in the Exhibit C-1, of this contract, the Department has the option to extend contract 
services for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available 
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. 

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals at highest risk 
for acquiring an infectious disease due to injection drug use, may not have the opportunity to access the 
knowledge necessary to make informed decisions about their own health. Individuals will not have the 
chance to be linked to the aforementioned essential services described above. 

Area served: Claremont, neighboring towns in Sullivan County, including, but not limited to 
Newport, Cornish, Croydon and Charlestown. 

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Public 
Health Emergency Response: Cooperative Agreement for Emergency Response: Public Health Crisis 
Response Funding Opportunity Number: CDC-RFA-TP18-1802. Catalog of Federal Domestic 
Assistance Number (CFDA) 93.354. 

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be 
requested to support this program. 

Commissioner 

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families 
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence. 



COMMUNITY BASED HARM 
REDUCTION SERVICES 

RFP Name 

Bidder Name 

1
· HIV/HCV Resource Center 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Business Operations 
Contracts & Procurement Unit 

Summary Scoring Sheet 

RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COM M U 

RFP Number 

Maximum 
Pass/Fail Points 

490 

Actual 
Points 

422 

Reviewer Names 
LiridsaiPierce, Bureau Chief, 

1. Infectious Disease Prevntn, 
lnvestgtn & Care Servs 

2 
Ellen.Chase-Lucard 

· Administrator 

Rachel Kusch Infectious Disease 
3. Care Coordinator 

Karen Hammond 
2

· Southern NH AIDS/HIV Task Force 490 353 4. Administrator Ill 

Melissa Richards 
5· Program Specialist IV 



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15) 
Subject: Community Based Harm Reduction Services, RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU-01 

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and 
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must 
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract. 

AGREEMENT 
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1 IDENTIFICATION 
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street 

Concord, NH 03301-3857 

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address 
HlV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. 2 Blacksmith Street 

Lebanon NH 03766 

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1. 7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation 
Number 

603-448-8887 05-095-090-902510-7093-102- November 30,2019 $50,109 
500731 

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number 
Nathan D. White, Director 603-271-9631 
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement 

l.llJ1:~ 
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory 

~vM Byr11.e, <f_?ye(;Jh«- .D,rcC/~' 
1.13"' Acknowledgement! State of /v H , County of G.AciJ~ 

On 5/ ~ j ~0 I q , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily 
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that slhe executed this document in the capacity 
indicated in block 1.12. 

1.131 ~=:=•fNm(P·;:r:~:'"e? rLoW PATRICIA L. JORDAN 
*NOTARY PUBLIC- NEW HAMPSHIRE* 

My Commission Expires January 13, 2021 

1.13.2 Name and Title ofNOf{ry 9f Ju_,,;w v• "V 
1.14 

stZ:~ 
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory s- . Ll)flY}tO~I\"i~ 1 D1Wz:c-foR- D?t-LS Date: /J.. "{ / I 4 

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable) 

By: Director, On: 

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) 

By:t!//-~~ On: 0/ tt/ ,~l 
1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable) 

By: On: 
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO 
BE PERFORMED. The State ofNew Hampshire, acting 
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages 
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform, 
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or 
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached 
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference 
("Services"). 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire, if 
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties 
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor 
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in 
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case 
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the 
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 
1.14 ("Effective Date"). 
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the 
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior 
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not 
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the 
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay 
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed. 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date 
specified in block 1.7. 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including, 
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are 
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation 
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any 
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated 
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of 
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold 
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State 
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account 
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that 
Account are reduced or unavailable. 

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of 
payment are identified and more particularly described in 
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference. 
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the 
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all 
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the 
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete 
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State 
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract 
price. 

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts 
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement 
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. 
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in 
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually 
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 
1.8. 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the 
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations, 
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities 
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, 
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity 
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary 
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication 
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can 
communicate with, receive information from, and convey 
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor 
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. 
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
not discriminate against employees or applicants for 
employment because ofrace, color, religion, creed, age, sex, 
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take 
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination. 
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the 
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the 
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal 
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the 
regulations ofthe United States Department of Labor (41 
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines 
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to 
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to 
permit the State or United States access to any of the 
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of 
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders, 
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

7. PERSONNEL. 
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all 
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor 
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be 
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly 
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable 
laws. 
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of 
this Agreement, and for a period of six ( 6) months after the 
Completion Date in block 1. 7, the Contractor shall not hire, 
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or 
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to 
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State 
employee or official, who is materially involved in the 
procurement, administration or performance of this 
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. 
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or 
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event 
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, 
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State. 

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. 
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the 
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder 
("Event ofDefault"): 
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on 
schedule; 
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or 
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition 
of this Agreement. 
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State 
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions: 
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifYing the Event 
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the 
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) 
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is 
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two 
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination; 
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifYing the Event 
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price 
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the 
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State 
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default 
shall never be paid to the Contractor; 
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to 
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any 
Event of Default; and/or 
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its 
remedies at law or in equity, or both. 

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/ 
PRESERVATION. 
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all 
information and things developed or obtained during the 
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, 
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video 
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, 
graphic representations, computer programs, computer 
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, 
all whether finished or unfinished. 
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from 
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose 
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and 
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon 
termination of this Agreement for any reason. 
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA 
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data 
requires prior written approval of the State. 

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of 
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the 
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting 
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of 
termination, a report ('"Termination Report") describing in 
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to 
and including the date of termination. The form, subject 
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination 
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report 
described in the attached EXHIBIT A. 

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In 
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all 
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor 
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its 
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to 
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation 
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees. 

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS. 
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any 
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and 
consent of the State. None ofthe Services shall be 
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written 
notice and consent of the State. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend, 
indemnifY and hold harmless the State, its officers and 
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the 
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, 
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers 
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, 
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be 
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the 
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the 
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby 
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

14. INSURANCE. 
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and 
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or 
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following 
insurance: 
14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all 
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts 
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000 
aggregate ; and 
14.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all 
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not 
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property. 
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall 
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the 
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of 
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew 
Hampshire. 

Page 3 of 4 
Contractor Initials f-6 

Date-5~/7----r? ----::.( Cj 
I t 



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) 
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. 
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer 
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of 
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this 
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of 
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of 
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to 
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block I. 9, or his 
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy. 

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
15 .I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, 
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with 
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A 
("Workers' Compensation"). 
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the 
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall 
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure 
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in 
connection with activities which the person proposes to 
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall 
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his 
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the 
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any 
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are 
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be 
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation 
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or 
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might 
arise under applicable State ofNew Hampshire Workers' 
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the 
Services under this Agreement. 

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to 
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall 
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of 
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express 
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a 
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the 
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default 
on the part of the Contractor. 

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party 
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the 
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United 
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses 
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. 

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, 
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed 
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such 
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and 
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire unless no 

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to 
State law, rule or policy. 

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and 
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement 
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual 
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or 
in favor of any party. 

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to 
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be 
construed to confer any such benefit. 

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement 
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained 
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or 
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set 
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of 
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect. 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may 
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior 
Agreements and understandings relating hereto. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Community Based Harm Reduction Services 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 

1. Limitation on Use of Funds 

1.1. This section identifies all items that cannot be funded through this contract. 

1.1.1. The Contractor shall not use the federal funding provided by this 
program for the research or purchase of items that include, but are not 
limited to: 

1.1.1.1. Research, publicity, lobbying and/or propaganda; 

1.1 .1 .2. Sterile needles; 

1.1.1.3. Syringes, cookers, tourniquets and/or any other drug 
preparation equipment for the purposes of hypodermic 
injection of any illegal drug; 

1.1.1.4. Sharps containers; 

1.1.1.5. Treatment medication; 

1.1.1.6. Naloxone; 

1.1.1.7. Clinical care; 

1.1.1.8. Diagnostic testing, including rapid test kits, strips or specimen 
testing for disease, including: 

1.1.1.8.1. Fentanyl test strips; 

1.1.1.8.2. Human Immunodeficiency (HIV); 

1.1.1.8.3. Hepatitis B Virus (HBV); 

1.1.1.8.4. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV); and 

1.1.1.8.5. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs). 

1.1.1.9. Drug disposal, including: 

1.1.1.9.1. Disposal programs; 

1.1.1.9.2. Drop boxes; 

1.1.1.9.3. Bags or other devises; and 

1.1.1.9.4. Take-back events. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Community Based Harm Reduction Services 

Exhibit A 

2. Provisions Applicable to All Services 

2.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance 
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure 
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (1 0) days of 
the contract effective date. 

2.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New 
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact 
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify 
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as 
to achieve compliance therewith. 

2.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no 
services shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be 
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and 
until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state 
legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia. 

2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the 
Contractor as a Sub-recipient in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq. 

2.5. The Contractor shall post its address, phone numbers, program contact 
information and, if appropriate, hours of operation and services offered on its 
Internet website. 

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to individuals in their 
service areas of Claremont, New Hampshire and neighboring New Hampshire 
Sullivan County towns, including but not limited to Newport, Cornish, Croydon 
and Charlestown. 

3. Scope of Services 

3.1. The Contractor shall both implement and provide for the ongoing management 
of harm reduction services in their identified service areas listed in sub-section 
2.6. 

3.2. The Contractor shall implement and provide ongoing management of a Harm 
Reduction Program by: 

3.2.1. Ensuring the program is adequately staffed and staff are well trained on 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Community Based Harm Reduction Services 

Exhibit A 

topics which shall include, but are not limited to: 

3.2.1.1. Overdose prevention; 

3.2.1.2. Universal precautions; 

3.2.1.3. Mandated reporting; and 

3.2.1.4. Other harm reduction topics. 

3.3. The Contractor shall provide a variety of harm reduction services that include, 
but are not limited to: 

3.3.1. 

3.3.2. 

3.3.3. 

3.3.4. 

Distribution of male and female condoms to reduce the risk of sexual 
transmission of viral hepatitis, HIV or other STDs; 

Distribution of naloxone, not purchased with funds from this contract, to 
reverse opioid overdoses; 

Harm Reduction Education; and 

Referrals to medical, mental health and substance misuse treatment 
social services. 

3.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with community partners to navigate 
resources that address social determinants of health with individuals with 
various needs. 

3.5. The Contractor shall utilize education in their harm reduction program, to 
assist individuals in gaining knowledge and making informed decisions about 
their own health. This shall include written and verbal education about the 
following topics: 

3.5.1. Safe drug injection practices; 

3.5.2. 

3.5.3. 

3.5.4. 

3.5.5. 

3.5.6. 

3.5.7. 

3.5.8. 

Reversing a drug overdose; 

HIV prevention, testing, treatment and care services; 

Viral Hepatitis testing, treatment and care services; 

STD testing, treatment and care services; 

Medical and mental health treatment options; 

Substance use disorder treatment including medical and assisted 
treatment; and 

The proper use of male and female condoms. 

3.6. The Contractor shall provide navigation services for individuals including, but 
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not limited to: 

3.6.1. Medical care for hepatitis C virus (HCV) and HIV; 

3.6.2. STD and TB testing, treatment and care; 

3.6.3. HIV Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP) and HIV Post-Exposure 
Prophylaxis (PEP); 

3.6.4. Prevention of mother to child transmission; 

3.6.5. Partner services; 

3.6.6. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Treatment; 

3.6.7. Medical and mental health care; and 

3.6.8. Referral to Hepatitis A and B vaccines. 

3.7. The Contractor shall educate people living with HIV on HIV Partner Services 
that are free and confidential and can assist them with navigating the process 
of informing current and past partners about their HIV status. The Contractor 
shall ensure: 

3.7.1. Individuals have the option to choose to ask a specialist to speak directly 
with their partners; 

3.7.2. Confidentiality of individuals' identifying information and ensuring 
identifying information is not shared with individuals' identified partners. 

3.7.3. Information about services, includes but is not limited to: 

3.7.3.1. Working with individuals, especially those who are newly 
diagnosed, encouraging them to utilize Partner Services; 

3.7.3.2. Encouraging individuals to persuade their peers to visit the 
program in person; and 

3.7.3.3. Encouraging individuals to utilize other relevant community 
resources. 

3.8. The Contractor shall have well-established referral networks and offer a 
seamless linkage to care for individuals who test positive for HIV. 

3.9. The Contractor shall help individuals access the NH treatment locator and 
other NH specific resources that can guide individuals to recovery and 
treatment for mental health and substance misuse. The Contractor shall: 

3.9.1. Place calls on behalf of individuals to schedule appointments, if 
requested, and facilitate their entry into assessment, treatment, or 
recovery opportunities. 

3.9.2. Discuss and provide printed copies of the Good Samaritan laws in both 

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials /0 
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VT and NH that protect individuals from being arrested for drug 
possession when they call 911 in the event of an overdose. 

3.9.3. Strongly encourage all individuals to call for help on their own. 

3.1 0. The Contractor shall conduct outreach services, including through social 
media, which may include but are not limited to: 

3.1 0.1. Transmitting information through social networks targeting individuals 
who may be in need of services; 

3.1 0.2. Creating information cards for individuals to use as a method of 
providing discreet messaging with people they can trust. The Contractor 
shall ensure the information card includes, but is not limited to: 

3.1 0.2.1. Program description; 

3.1 0.2.2. Hours of operation; 

3.1 0.2.3. Location of services; and 

3.1 0.2.4. Program contact information. 

3.1 0.3. Advertising program services on bulletin boards located throughout the 
town; 

3.1 0.4. Providing content regarding program services the Contractor's 
Facebook page and its website that includes locations of services and 
hours of operation; 

3.1 0.5. Utilizing paid targeted advertisements on social media platforms that 
include but are not limited to Facebook to educate community partners 
program services; 

3.11. The Contractor shall coordinate with community-based services in order to 
reduce infectious disease transmission and addiction to injected drugs. 

3.11.1. Works with harm reduction clients directly to identify their needs and 
assist them with accessing medical and social services which shall 
include, but not be limited to: 

3.11.2. Substance misuse treatment; 

3.11.3. STD (sexually transmitted disease) testing; 

3.11.4. Hepatitis C follow up; 

3.11.5. Mental health counseling; and 

3.11.6. Housing. 

3.12. The Contractor shall ensure program services include a Harm Reduction 

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials _/6"""'7--T"" 
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Coordinator who: 

3.12.1. Accompanies individuals to follow up appointments, if desired, in order 
to ensure linkage to care; 

3.12.2. Works closely with individuals to assist them with applying for health 
insurance and getting into treatment; 

3.12.3. Maintains current records of all trainings for staff regarding program 
services; 

3.12.4. Works with communities within the Contractor's service areas to 
promote harm reduction strategies, and overdose prevention and to help 
ensure successful referrals to linkage to substance misuse, mental 
health and medical care; and 

3.12.5. Trains and supervises volunteer staff in areas that include, but are not 
limited to: 

3.12.5.1. Overdose prevention; 

3.12.5.2. Infection control procedures; 

3.12.5.3. Standard universal precautions; 

3.12.5.4. TB screening; 

3.12.5.5. Sexual health; and 

3.12.5.6. Opiate addiction overview, including relapse and relapse 
prevention. 

3.13. The Contractor shall ensure policies and procedures are implemented and 
followed on a day-to-day basis for individual follow-up for HIV/HCV Testing, 
including, but not limited to: 

3.13.1. Collaborating with Partner Services when results of a test are positive; 

3.13.2. Encouraging individuals who test positive for HIV to make use of 
confidential Partner Services; and 

3.13.3. Connecting individuals directly with a specialist from the Division of 
Public Health Services in order to help locate their sex and drug sharing 
partners for follow up. 

3.14. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Coordinator reviews results of HIV 
and HCV screening tests to ensure linkage to follow up testing and care. 

3.15. The Contractor shall enroll any newly diagnosed individual with HIV, who are 
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eligible, for HIV case management services. 

3.16. The Contractor shall: 

3.16.1. Provide support during the individual's transition to medical care; 

3.16.2. Assist individuals with problems that may arise, which may include, but 
are not limited to: 

3.16.2.1. Maintaining communication with the individual; 

3.16.2.2. Offering transportation to medical appointments; and 

3.16.2.3. Assisting individuals with navigation through the insurance 
system. 

3.17. The Contractor shall ensure that Expanded Services are offered, which 
include, but are not limited to: 

3.17.1. Education and counseling aimed to reduce sexual, injection and/or 
overdose risks; 

3.17.2. Providing condoms in an effort to reduce the risk of sexual transmission 
of viral hepatitis, HIV and/or other STDs; 

3.17.3. Participating in referral activities, within their area of service to enhance 
the integration of community-based services to reduce infectious 
disease transmission and reduce injected drug use, which shall include, 
but not be limited to: 

3.17.3.1. Referral and linkage to treatment and care services for the 
prevention of mother-to-child infectious disease transmission 
which shall include, but not be limited to: 

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. 

RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU-01 

3.17.3.1.1. Referral on site to a location that can provide 
Hepatitis A and B vaccines; 

3.17.3.1.2. Ensure the mother is receiving prenatal medical 
care; 

3.17.3.1.3. Work with pregnant clients who are not in 
medical care to help dismantle barriers to 
receiving care, whether these are insurance, 
transportation, fear, or any other barrier; 

3.17.3.1.4. Offer HIV antibody testing, not purchased 
through this contract, to pregnant clients who are 
not receiving prenatal care; and 
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3.17.3.1.5. Assist client with obtaining immediate medical 
care should the test result be positive for HIV. 

3.17.3.2. Referral and linkage to treatment and care services for partner 
services; 

3.17.3.3. Referral, linkage to, and the provision of, substance use 
disorder treatment, including, but not limited to: 

3.17.3.4. Obtaining medication; and 

3.17.3.5. Assisted treatment for substance use disorders, which 
combine drug therapy with counseling and behavioral 
therapy. 

3.17.3.5.1. Referrals to medical care; 

3.17.3.5.2. Referrals to mental health services; and 

3.17.3.5.3. Referrals to other support services. 

3.18. The Contractor shall immediately refer pregnant women to medication­
assisted treatment programs and other support programs, as appropriate. 

3.19. The Contractor shall offer a variety of in-house services which include, but are 
not limited to: 

3.19.1. Utilizing a case manager, who is a Certified Application Counselor, to 
assist individuals with applying for health insurance; and 

3.19.2. Utilizing a case manager, who is a Licensed Alcohol and Drug 
Counselor, to offer counseling to selected individuals. 

4. Reporting 

4.1. The Contractor shall comply with State of New Hampshire infectious disease 
reporting in accordance with Administrative Rules He-P 301. 

4.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports that include, but are not limited 
to: 

4.2.1. 

4.2.2. 

A brief summary of activities to date; 

Number of participants in the program, which shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

4.2.2.1. Number of repeat users of the program, when possible; 

4.2.2.2. Number of individuals to whom education has been provided, 

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials~ 
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for services which shall include, but not be limited to: 

4.2.2.2.1. Safe drug injection practices; 

4.2.2.2.2. Reversing a drug overdose; 

4.2.2.2.3. HIV prevention, testing, treatment and care 
services; 

4.2.2.2.4. Viral Hepatitis testing, treatment and care 
services; 

4.2.2.2.5. STD testing, treatment and care services; 

4.2.2.2.6. Medical and mental health treatment options; 

4.2.2.2.7. Substance use disorder treatment, including 
medical and assisted treatment; and 

4.2.2.2.8. The proper use of male and female condoms. 

4.2.2.3. Number of condoms dispensed; 

4.2.2.4. Number of referrals to substance misuse treatment, including, 
but not limited to: 

4.2.2.4.1. Medication; and, 

4.2.2.4.2. Assisted treatment for substance use disorders, 
which combine drug therapy with counseling and 
behavioral therapy. 

4.2.2.5. Number of HIV tests provided, and results; and 

4.2.2.6. Number of HCV tests provided, and results. 

4.3. The Contractor shall demonstrate, through adequate maintenance of records, 
and provide to the Department on request, a report detailing that the items 
identified in Section 1 have not been purchased with these federal funds. 

5. Performance Measures 

5.1. The Contractor's successful performance shall be measured using SMART 
milestones, which include: 

5.1.1. Ninety-five percent (95%) of newly identified HIV positive individuals will 
be linked to medical care within thirty (30) days of receiving a positive 
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test result; 

5.1.2. Ninety-five percent (95%) of newly identified HCV antibody positive 
individuals who do not receive a Ribonucleic acid (RNA) test at the time 
of antibody-screening, shall have a documented referral to medical care, 
at that time; 

5.1.3. Ninety-five percent (95%) of individuals utilizing Harm Reduction 
Services shall utilize one (1) or more Harm Reduction Services per visit; 
and 

5.1.4. The Contractor shall offer referrals to social service, HIV, HCV and STD 
testing, medical/mental health and medication-assisted treatment 
referrals for fifty percent (50%) of their individuals and confirm linkage. 

6. Deliverables 

6.1. The Contractor shall create an evaluation plan that consists of all measures to 
be tracked and revisit this plan on a quarterly basis making improvements as 
necessary and staying regularly engaged with evaluation. 

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a work plan to the Department, with timeline for 
the project, within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date. 

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials 
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment 

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, 
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 

2. This Agreement is funded with federal funds as follows: 100% Federal Funds from 
Centers for Disease Control, Office of Publich Health Preparedness and Response, 
Public Health Emergency Response, Cooperative Agreement for Emergency 
Response: Public Health Crisis Response. Funding Opportunity Number, CDC-RFA­
TP18-1802. CFDA #93.354, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 
U90TP921963. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in 
compliance with funding requirements. 

4. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current 
and/or future funding. 

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows: 

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures 
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with 
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-2 
Budget. 

5.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the 
twentieth (20th) working day of each month, which identifies and requests 
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. 

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned 
to the Department in order to initiate payment. 

5.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds 
are available. 

6. The Contractor understands that the use of federal funding from this contract cannot 
be used for research or purchase of items that include: 

6.1. Research, publicity, lobbying and/or propaganda; 
6.2. Sterile needles; 
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6.3. Syringes, cookers, tourniquets and/or any other drug preparation equipment 
for the purposes of hypodermic injection of any illegal drug; 

6.4. Sharps containers; 
6.5. Treatment medication; 
6.6. Naloxone; 
6.7. Clinical care; 
6.8. Diagnostic testing, including rapid test kits, strips, or specimen testing for 

disease, including: 
6.8.1. Fentanyl test strips; 
6.8.2. Human Immunodeficiency (HIV); 
6.8.3. Hepatitis B Virus (HBV); 
6.8.4. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV); and 
6.8.5. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs). 

6.9. Drug disposal, including: 
6.9.1. Disposal programs; 
6.9.2. Drop boxes; 
6.9.3. Bags or other devices; and 
6.9.4. Take back events. 

7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department­
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as 
requested. 

8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract 
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date. 

9. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed 
to DPHSContractBilling@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to: 

Financial Administrator, Karen Hammond 
Department of Health and Human Services 
Division of Public Health Services 
29 Hazen Drive 
Concord, NH 03301 

10. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as 
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B. 
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11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding 
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non­
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services 
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

12. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to 
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related 
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between 
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be 
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council. 
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Community Based Harm Reduction Services ExhibitB-1 

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD 

Instructions: Fill out the Direct/Indirect columns only fOr both Contractor Share and Funded by DHHS. Everything else will automatically populate. 
Contractor name: HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc_ 

Budget ReCJ,~est for: Community Based Ham1 Reduct1on Serv1ces 
RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMM.J 

Budget Period: SFY 2019 

Line ltam 
1. Total Salarv/Waoes $ 
2. Emolovee Benefits $ 
3. ConsuHants $ 
4. E_g_ujpment: $ 

Rental $ 
Reoair and Maintenance $ 
Purchase/Depreciation $ 

5. Suoolies: $ 
Educational $ 
Lab $ 
Pharmacy $ 
Medical $ 
Office $ 

6. Travel $ 
7. Occupancy $ 
8. Current Exoenses $ 

Teleohone $ 
Postage $ 
Subscriptions $ 
Audit and Leaal $ 
Insurance $ 
Board Exoenses $ 

9. Software $ 
10. Marketina/Communications $ 
11. Staff Education and Trainina $ 
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 
13. Other (SSP supplies testing incentives $ 

TOTAL 
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 

HIVIHCV Resource Center, Inc. 
RFP·2019-DPHS-20.COMMU·01 
Exhibit B-1 
Page 1 of1 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Direct 
17 580.00 
4 380.00 

0.60 

-
120.00 

-
171.60 

1 800.00 
1 095.60 

328.80 
24.00 

0.60 
0.60 

1102.80 
-

900.00 
360.00 
900.00 

0.60 
3 450.00 

-
32,215.20 

Totall'rogram Cost 
Indirect 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ -
$ 
$ 
s 

0.0% 

Contractor Share I Match 
Total Direct Indirect 

$ 17 580.00 $ 879.00 $ $ 
$ 4 380.00 $ 219.60 $ - $ 
$ 0.60 $ $ $ 
$ $ - $ $ 
$ $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ $ $ 
$ $ $ $ 
$ $ $ - $ 
$ 120.00 $ 120.00 $ $ 
$ $ $ $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ $ $ 
$ 171.60 $ 85.80 $ $ 
$ 1 800.00 $ - $ - $ 
$ 1 095.60 $ 547.80 $ $ 
$ $ $ $ 
$ 328.80 $ 164.40 $ - $ 
$ 24.00 $ 12.00 $ - $ 
$ 0.60 $ $ $ 
$ 0.60 $ - $ - $ 
$ 1102.80 $ 982.80 $ - $ 
$ - $ $ $ 
$ 900.00 $ $ - $ 
$ 360.00 $ 60.00 $ - $ 
$ 900.00 $ $ $ 
$ 0.60 $ $ $ 
$ 3 450.00 $ 3 000.00 $ - $ 
$ - $ $ $ 
$ - $ $ $ 
$ $ $ - $ 
$ 32,215.20 $ 6,071.40 $ s 

Funded by DHHS contract share 
Total Direct Indirect Total 

879.00 $ 16 701.00 $ - $ 16 701.00 
219.60 $ 4 160.40 $ $ 4 160.40 

- $ 0.60 $ $ 0.60 
$ - $ - $ -

- $ $ $ 
- $ - $ - $ -

$ $ $ 
- $ $ $ 

120.00 $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ $ 

- $ $ $ 
- $ - $ - $ -

85.80 $ 85.80 $ $ 85.80 
$ 1 800.00 $ $ 1 800.00 

547.80 $ 547.80 $ - $ 547.80 
$ $ $ 

164.40 $ 164.40 $ $ 164.40 
12.00 $ 12.00 $ - $ 12.00 

$ 0.60 $ $ 0.60 
$ 0.60 $ - $ 0.60 

982.80 $ 120.00 $ - $ 120.00 
$ - $ $ 
$ 900.00 $ - $ 900.00 

60.00 $ 300.00 $ $ 300.00 
$ 900.00 $ $ 900.00 
$ 0.60 $ - $ 0.60 

3 000.00 $ 450.00 $ $ 450.00 
- $ $ - $ -

$ $ - $ 
$ - $ $ 

6,071.40 s 26,143.80 s - s 26,143.80 

Contractor Initials f,.. !.!;;, 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD 

Instructions: Fill out the Direct/Indirect columns only for both Contractor Share and Funded by DHHS. Everything else will automatically populate. 
Contractor name: HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. 

Budget Request for: Community Based Harm Reduction Services 
RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU 

Budget Period: SFY 2020 (July 1, 2019 ·November 30, 20191 

Line Item 
1. Total Salary/Wages 
2. Emplovee Benefits 
3. Consultants 
4. Eauipment: 

Rental 
Repair and Maintenance 
Purchase/Depreciation 

5. Supplies: 
Educational 
Lab 
Pharma91_ 
Medical 
Office 

6. Travel 
7. Occupancy 
8. Current Expenses 

Telephone 
Postage 
Subscriptions 
Audit and Legal 
Insurance 
Board Expenses 

9. Software 
10. Marketing/Communications 
11. Staff Education and Training 
12. Subcontracts/Agreements 
13. Other (SSP supplies testing incentives 

TOTAL 
li1direct As A PercenfOfDirect 

HIV/HCV Resource Center 
RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU-01 
Exhibrt B-2 
Page 1 of 1 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Total Program Cost 
Direct Indirect 

16 650.00 $ 1 665.00 
1 650.00 $ 165.00 

0.50 $ 0.05 
- $ -
- $ -
- $ -
- $ -
- $ -

100.00 $ 10.00 
- $ -
- $ -
- $ -

143.00 $ 14.30 
1 500.00 $ 150.00 

913.00 $ 91.30 
- $ -

274.00 $ 27.40 
20.00 $ 2.00 
0.50 $ 0.05 
0.50 $ 0.05 

919.00 $ 91.90 
- $ -

750.00 $ 75.00 
300.00 $ 30.00 
750.00 $ 75.00 

0.50 $ 0.05 
2 875.00 $ 287.50 

- $ -
- $ -
- $ -

26,846.00 $ 2,684.60 
"'"""""' 10.0% 

Contractor Share I Match 
Total Direct Indirect 

$ 18 315.00 $ 832.50 $ 83.25 $ 
$ 1 815.00 $ 82.50 $ 8.25 $ 
$ 0.55 $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ 110.00 $ 100.00 $ 10.00 $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ 157.30 $ 71.50 $ 7.15 $ 
$ 1 650.00 $ - $ - $ 
$ 1 004.30 $ 456.50 $ 45.65 $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ 301.40 $ 137.00 $ 13.70 $ 
$ 22.00 $ 10.00 $ 1.00 $ 
$ 0.55 $ - $ - $ 
$ 0.55 $ - $ - $ 
$ 1 010.90 $ 819.00 $ 81.90 $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ 825.00 $ - $ - $ 
$ 330.00 $ 50.00 $ 5.00 $ 
$ 825.00 $ - $ - $ 
$ 0.55 $ - $ - $ 
$ 3 162.50 $ 2 500.00 $ 250.00 $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ - $ - $ - $ 
$ 29,530.60 $ 5,059.00 $ 505.90 $ 

•"""""' 10.0% 

Funded by DHHS contract share 
Total Direct Indirect Total 

915.75 $ 13 917.50 $ 1 391.75 $ 15 309.25 
90.75 $ 3 467.00 $ 346.70 $ 3 813.70 

- $ 0.50 $ 0.05 $ 0.55 
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -

110.00 $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -

78.65 $ 71.50 $ 7.15 $ 78.65 
- $ 1 500.00 $ 150.00 $ 1 650.00 

502.15 $ 456.50 $ 45.65 $ 502.15 
- $ - $ - $ -

150.70 $ 137.00 $ 13.70 $ 150.70 
11.00 $ 10.00 $ 1.00 $ 11.00 

- $ 050 $ 0.05 $ 0.55 
- $ 0.50 $ 0.05 $ 0.55 

900.90 $ 100.00 $ 10.00 $ 110.00 
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ 750.00 $ 75.00 $ 825.00 

55.00 $ 250.00 $ 25.00 $ 275.00 
- $ 750.00 $ 75.00 $ 825.00 
- $ 0.50 $ 0.05 $ 0.55 

2 750.00 $ 375.00 $ 37.50 $ 412.50 
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -
- $ - $ - $ -

5,564.90 $ 21,786.50 $ 2,178.65 $ 23,965.15 ........ ,.,, 
10.0% 
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor 
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible 
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and 
agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility 
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and 
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures. 

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by 
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by 
the Department. 

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor 
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all 
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the 
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation 
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require. 

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as 
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out 
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair 
hearing in accordance with Department regulations. 

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or 
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or 
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this 
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is 
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by 
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor. 

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any 
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties 
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for 
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract 
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided 
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the 
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services. 

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services 
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate 
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a 
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party 
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final 
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used 
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment 
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals 
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to: 

7.1. 
7.2. 

09/13/18 

Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established; 
Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in 
excess of costs; 
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make 
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is 
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to 
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services 
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at 
any time during the period of retention of records established herein. 

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY: 

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor 
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period: 

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs 
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all 
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be 
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and 
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and 
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as 
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of 
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the 
Department. 

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of 
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and 
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records 
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain 
payment for such services. 

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the 
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patienUrecipient of services. 

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe 
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non 
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, 
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as 
they pertain to financial compliance audits. 

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the 
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their 
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to 
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is 
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state 
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the 
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an 
exception. 

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected 
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not 
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of 
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to 
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes 
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that 
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not 
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with 
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his 
attorney or guardian. 

09/13118 Page 2 of 5 
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in 
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever. 

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing 
times if requested by the Department. 
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of 

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and 
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to 
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form 
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department. 

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term 
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall 
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal 
and other information required by the Department. 

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the 
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation 
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, 
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or 
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the 
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as 
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such 
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor. 

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared 
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following 
statement: 
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State 

of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part 
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or 
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or 
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production, 
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials 
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines, 
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without 
prior written approval from DHHS. 

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities 
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, 
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers 
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the 
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or 
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services, 
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the 
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall 
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and 
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by­
laws and regulations. 

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has 
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or 
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the 
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees 
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an 
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non­
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the 
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption. 
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/abouUocr/pdfs/cert.pdf. 

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to 
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin 
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to its programs. 

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The 
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48 
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000) 

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT To INFORM EMPLOYEES OF 
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013) 

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights 
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at 
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 
112-239) and FAR 3.908. 

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce, 
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S. C. 4712, as described in section 
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation. 

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all 
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold. 

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with 
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience, 
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to 
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated 
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if 
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual 
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance 
with those conditions. 

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following: 

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating 
the function 

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting 
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's 
performance is not adequate 

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis 
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and 
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed 

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts. 

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall 
take corrective action. 

20. Contract Definitions: 

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department 
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established 
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders. 

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services. 

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a 
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or 
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided 
under the Contract. 

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall 
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified 
in Exhibit 8 of the Contract. 

20.5. FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and 
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean 
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time. 

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this 
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services. 
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE 

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions 

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows: 

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State 
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, 
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, 
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by 
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise 
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of 
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the 
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In 
the event of a reduction, tennination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the 
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The 
State shall have the right to reduce, tenninate or modify services under this Agreement 
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, tennination or modification. 
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the 
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other 
account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable. 

1.2. Section 10, Tennination, is amended by adding the following language: 

10.1 The State may tenninate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of 
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its 
option to tenninate the Agreement. 

10.2 In the event of early tennination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early 
tennination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the 
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients 
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs. 

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed 
infonnation to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any infonnation or data 
requested by the State related to the tennination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and 
shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as 
requested. 

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving 
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity 
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for 
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan. 

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals 
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its 
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above. 

2. Renewal 

2.1 The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to one (1) additional year, 
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the 
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, SubtitleD; 41 

U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 

1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

ALTERNATIVE I- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES -CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, SubtitleD; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 

21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub­

contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State 
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for 

each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a 
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False 
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or 

termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should 

send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Stree~ 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibition; 

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

occurring in the workplace; 
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of 

employment under the grant. the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; 

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 

subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant 
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the 

identification number{s) of each affected grant; 
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 

subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted 

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 

amended; or 
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 

rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, 

law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. 

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in 

connection with the specific grant. 

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location) 

Check C if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 

Date 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS 

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): 
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A 
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0 
"Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX 
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX 
"Community Services Block Grant under Title VI 
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub­
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.) 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon wllich reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

Contractor Name: 
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, 

Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's 
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following 

Certification: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the 

certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial 

of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an 

explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS) 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary 
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in 

this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective 

primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 

available to the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to 

whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns 

that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered 
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction,~ "principal,~ •proposal," and 

"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 
attached definitions. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the 

proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the 

clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, lneligibmty and Voluntary Exclusion -

Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered 

transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 

lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 

decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records 
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 

Exhibit F- Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials ~[-0 
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 

person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 

covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 

suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 

addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction 

for cause or default. 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 

principals: 
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 

connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) 

transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 

statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 

records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) 

of this certification; and 
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 

certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant as 

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 

13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such 

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will 

include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 

Voluntary Exclusion -Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered 

transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 

certification: 

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable 

federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include: 

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits 

recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in 

the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act 

requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; 

-the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 

reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this 

statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or 

benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal 

Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; 

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial 

assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity); 

-the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial 

assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of 

services or benefits, in any program or activity; 

-the Americans with Disabilities kt of 1990 (42 U.S. C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits 

discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local 

government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; 

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), Which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; 

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the 

basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include 

employment discrimination; 

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 

(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies 

and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community 

organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 

criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; 

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations- Equal Treatment for Faith-Based 

Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization 

Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. l. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for 

Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections. which protects employees against 

reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the 

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for 

suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or 

debarment. 
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of 

discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex 

against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to 

the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and 

to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 

certification: 

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply wlth the provisions 

indicated above. 

6121114 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE 

Public Law 103-227, Part C- Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 

(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or 

contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, 

or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either 

directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant contract loan, or loan guarantee. The 

law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by 

Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure 

to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to 

$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's 

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 

certification: 

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply 

with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. 

Dale 
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

The Contractor identified in Section 1. 3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 

comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and 

with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 

CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business 

Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that 

receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered 

Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

{1) Qefjnjtjoos. 

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code 

of Federal Regulations. 

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title45, 

Code of Federal Regulations. 

d. "Desianated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45CFR 

Section 164.501. 

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations" 

in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

g. "HI TECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 

Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 

2009. 

h. ~HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of1996, Public Law 

104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103 

and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 

CFR Section 164.501(g). 

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 

Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States 

Department of Health and Human Services. 

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health 

information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by 

Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 

312014 EXhibit I 
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45CFR 

Section 164.103. 

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 

his/her designee. 

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not 

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, 

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by 

a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards 

Institute. 

p. Other Definitions- All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the 

HITECH 
Act. 

(2) Bysjness Assocjate Use and Djsc!osyre of Protected Health lnformatjon, 

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health 

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under 

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all 

its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit 

PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: 

I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 

IL As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or 

Ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered 

Entity. 

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a 

third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) 

reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and 

used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was 

disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 

Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 

Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained 

knowledge of such breach. 

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to 

provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying 

Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and 

to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business 

312014 Exhibit I 
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 

remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to 

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 

safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 

such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

(3) Qbligatjons and Actjyjtjes of Bysjness Assocjate. 

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 

after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected 

health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured 

protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the 

protected health information of the Covered Entity. 

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 

aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be 

limited to: 

c. 

d. 

e. 

312014 

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the 

types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification; 

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the 

disclosure was made; 
o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been 

mitigated. 

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the 

breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the 

Covered Entity. 

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 

Breach Notification Rule. 

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books 

and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or 

received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 

purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and 

Security Rule. 

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have 

access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same 

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including 

the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity 

shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate 

agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI 
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 

business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of 

protected health information. 

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 

records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure 

of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 

Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

Within ten (1 0) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 

Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the 

requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an 

amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 

Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 

amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 

obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. 

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to 

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 

individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 

164.528. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 

request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available 

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations 

to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 

Section 164.528. 

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI 

directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 

business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 

responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the 

individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 

Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 

shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify 

Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. 

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the 

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 

received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 

Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or 

destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in 

the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the 

Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those 

purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business 
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the 

Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to 

Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

{4) Obligations of Covered Eotjty 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its 

Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 

164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's 

use or disclosure of PHI. 

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 

of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 

disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 

164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or 

disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 

to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 

PHI. 

(5} Termloatjon for Cayse 

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this 

Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered 

Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate 

Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately 

terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 

alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 

determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the 

violation to the Secretary. 

(6) Mjscel!aneous 

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, 

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 

from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to 

a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as 

amended. 

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is 

necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered 

Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and 

Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. 

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights 

with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. 
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or 

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the 

terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or 

destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the 

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the 

standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Name of Authorized Representative 

Title of Authorized Representative 

Date 
)/}.'{, i {} 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNT ABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY 

ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual 

Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on 

data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the 

initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over 

$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. 

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the 

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any 

subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 

1. Name of entity 
2. Amount of award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 

5. Program source 
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action 

7. Location of the entity 
8. Principle place of performance 
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#) 

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: 

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 

revenues are greater than $25M annually and 

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which 

the award or award amendment is made. 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, 

and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees 

to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions 

execute the following Certification: 

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH 

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal 

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. 
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FORMA 

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the 

below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 8bl?,z_l8oS 

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, 

loans, grants, sub1:Jrants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual 

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or 

cooperative agreements? _L 
___ NO YES 

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here 

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following: 

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your 

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 ofthe Internal Revenue Code of 

1986? 

___ NO _____!Cj_YES 

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here 

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following: 

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or 

organization are as follows: 

Name: U!Jl~:> 
Name: n\A. 
Name: 

Name: 

Name: 

CUJDHHS/110713 
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DHHS Information Security Requirements 

A Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to 
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable 
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 
Information, " Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term uBreach" in section 
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security 
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident 
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 
of Commerce. 

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information 
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public 
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance 
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 
Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by 
the State of NH- created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted 
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by 
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to 
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial 
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), 
Payment Card Industry (PC I), and or other sensitive and confidential information. 

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives 
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPM" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, 
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a 
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, 
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss 
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic 
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mail. aU of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. 

7. "Open Wireless Net\Nork" means any network or segment of a network that is 
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information 
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and 
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open 
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, 
PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

B. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish 
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal 
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc., 
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked 
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden 
name, etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHr} has the same meaning as provided in the 
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 
160.103. 

11 "Security Rule~ shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments 
thereto. 

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is 
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 
the American National Standards Institute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information 
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation 
of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 

subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 

consent or object to the disclosure. 

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional 

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 

pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such 

additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 

of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 
Contract. 

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 

Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have 

been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said 

application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. 

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 

or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 

data. 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 

email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of 

persons authorized to receive such information. 

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 

Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 

secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 

hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 

Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 

mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual. 

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 

Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when 
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to 
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be 
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be 
transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will 
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of 
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 
hours). 

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all 
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any 
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted 
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United 
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of 
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup 
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a 
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have 
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti­
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a 
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's 
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 
infrastructure. 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its 
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will 
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster 
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of 
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, 
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. 
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at 
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department 
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to 
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, 
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 
secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data 
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 
derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 
of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from 
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the 
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to 
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or 
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies 
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of 
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to 
system access being authorized. 

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the 
agreement. 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office 
leadership member within the Department. 

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from 
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to 
the breach. 

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects 
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less 
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, 
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS 
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health 
information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and 
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to 
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. 
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://WWV>J.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm 
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and 
procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the 
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses 
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer 
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New 
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obta"1ned under this 
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to 
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, 
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information at all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or 
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being 
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to 
receive such information. 
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually 
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 
biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any 
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases, 
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when 
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based 
assessment of the circumstances involved. 

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be 
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. 
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 
a third party application. 

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS 
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, 
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any 
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in 
Section VI. 

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in 
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and 
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: 

1. Identify Incidents; 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents; 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and 
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identity appropriate 
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 
measures. 

Incidents andfor Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as 
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT 

A DHHS Privacy Officer: 

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 

B. DHHS Security Officer: 

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 
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State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFICATE 

I. William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of \lew I lampshirc. do hereby ccrtif)' that Ill V/IICV RESOURCE 

CENTER. INC. is a New Hwnpshirc }.ionprofit Corporation registered to transact businc~s in New Hampshire on Man:h 06. 1990. 

I further ccrtit~· that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State"s office have hccn received and is in good standing 

as tar as this office is concerned. 

Business ID: 149500 

Certificate !\urn her: 0004523245 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF. 

I hereto set m;. hand and cau~c to hc aJlixcd 

the Seal of the Stmc of New Hampshire, 

this Jrd day of June A.D. 2019. 

William M. Gardner 

Sccretar: or State 
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QuickS tart 

Business Information 

Business Details 

B 
. N HIV/HCV RESOURCE CENTER, 

us1ness arne: 
INC. 

. Domestic Nonprofit 
Bus1ness Type: 

Corporation 

Business Creation 
0310611990 

Date: 

Date of Formation in 

Jurisdiction: 
0310611990 

Principal Office 2 Blacksmith Street, Lebanon, 

Address: NH, 03766, USA 

Citizenship I State of 
Domestic/New Hampshire 

Incorporation: 

Duration: Perpetual 

Business Email: NONE 

Notification Email: NONE 

Principal Purpose 

S.No NAICS Code 

OTHER I PROVIDE AIDS INFORMATION AND 

EDUCATION PROGRAMS/SPONSOR DIRECT 

SERVICE ACTIVITY 

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1 

Page 2 of4 

Business ID: 149500 

Business Status: Good Standing 

Name in State of 

I 
. Not Available 

ncorporat1on: 

Mailing Address: 2 Blacksmith Street, Lebanon, 

NH, 03766, USA 

Last Nonprofit 
2015 

Report Year: 

Next Report 
2020 

Year: 

Phone#; NONE 

Fiscal Year End NONE 
Date: 

NAJCS Subcode 

--------
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Quick Start 

Principals Information 
----------------- ---------

Name/Title 

Linda Weiss I President 

Thomas Schlehuber I Treasurer 

Joe Wildey I Secretary 

Andres Aguilera I Director 

Julie Bardales I Director 

Business Address 

513 Roundhouse Road, Corinth, 05039, USA 

PO Box 628, Quechee, 05059, USA 

PO Box 55, N. Thetford, 05054, USA 

9 Ivy Lane, Hanover, 03755, USA 

9 Rogers Road, Strafford, 05072, USA 

< Previous ... 1 2 i Next> Page 1 of 2, records 1 to 5 of 10 0 , Go to Page 

Registered Agent Information 

Name: Not Available 

Registered Office Not Available 

Address: 

Registered Mailing Not Available 

Address: 

Trade Name Information 

No Trade Name(s} associated to this business. 

Page 3 of 4 

----·------------
Trade Name Owned By 

No Records to View. -------------------------
Trademark Information 

Trademark 

Number 
Trademark Name Business Address Mailing Address 

No records to view. 

-------·····-----.. -----··--·-·------------
Filing History Address History View All Other Addresses Name History 

Shares Businesses Linked to Registered Agent Return to Search Back 
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE 
(Corporation without Seal) 

I, Sarah Lord, do hereby certify that: 

1. I am the duly elected Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the HIV/HCV Resource Center. 

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation held on May 20, 2019. 

RESOLVED: That this Corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting through 
its Department of Health and Human Services, for the provision of harm reduction services. 

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director 

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to 
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or 
modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. 

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of 
the 20 day of May, 2019. 

4. Laura Byrne was elected Execut1ve Director on October 12, 2013, With the authonty to s1gn, negot1ate 

and enter mto contracts on behalf of the Agency b{):;tJJ.l sf M ' 
Board Chair of the HIVIHCV Resource Center 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

County of G[~ 

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ,!II - day of nfe:'f , 20.J.f_. 

By :So..ra.b L ill d 

Commission Expires: 6i' / ;o/a! 
> ' 



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF I ONLY AND ; NO RIGHTS UPON THE I THIS 
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NH DHHS 
129 Pleasant Street 
Concord NH 03301 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 
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JZ/612018 

CANCELLATION 

121612019 1 

i 

space I• noquii'B<I) 

$1_000 000 
$3 000 000 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
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CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 
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HIV/HCV Resource Center Mission Statement 

Our mission is to support and empower those whose lives are affected by Hepatitis C and 
HIV/AIDS to live fully and with dignity through education, information and 
understanding. We work to change attitudes. actions and institutions that sustain the 
diseases. We strive to create a community capable of choosing love, compassion and 
support over fear, ignorance and prejudice. 
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Lee A. White. CPA. CFP'". PFS 

LEE A. WHITE & ASSOCIATES 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

To the Board of Directors of 
IDV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. 

86 Summer Srre('! 
Uol'lt!. Vermo11t 0564! 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements ofHIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. 

(a nonprofit organization), which comprise that statement of financial positions as of June 30, 2016. 

and the related statement of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to 

the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to 

management's financial data and making inquiries of management. A review is substantially less in 

scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial 

statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to 

fraud or error. 

Accountant's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards 

for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting Review Services Committee of 

the AICPA. Those standards require us to perfonn procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis 

for reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial 

statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our 

conclusion. 

Accountant's Conclusion 

Based on our review, we arc not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the 

accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Barre. Vennont 
VT Registration No.: 92-0000340 
June 16,2017 

Membf!r of ThC' American ln~ti!Uie Wid Vermont Sou ely of Ccrrificrl Public AcNJiflllilllt\ 

Plume (802) 476"6191 Fox (802) 476-0642 

(1} 
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HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSlTION 

June 30,2016 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Security deposit 
Grants receivable (Note 4) 
Prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Notes I & 3) 

Equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total Property and Equipment 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILlTIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILlTIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued wages 
Payroll taxes and other withholdings 

Deferred revenue (Note 5) 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 
Total Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 
Pennanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

See accompanying notes and Independent Accountant's Review Report 

(2) 

$ 152,184 
1,400 

34,015 
2,903 

190,502 

10,948 
(10,948) 

$ 190,502 

1,716 
8,121 

621 
20,500 

30,958 

159,544 
159,544 

159,544 

$ 190,502 
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HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER,JNC. 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year ended June 30,2016 

Changes in Unrestricted Assets 

Support and Revenue: 
Grant income 
Contributions 
Other services 
Interest income 
In kind revenue 

Total Support and Revenue 

Program Services: 
Client Services 
Education 

Total Program Services 

Support Services: 
General and administrative 
Fundraising 

Total Support Services 

Total expenses 

Change in unrestricted net assets 

Unrestricted net assets, beginning of year 

Unrestricted net assets, end of year 

Temporarily restricted net assets, beginning of year 

Temporarily restricted nets assets, end of year 

Permanently restricted net assets, beginning of year 

Permanently restricted net assets, end of year 

See accompanying notes and Independent Accountant's Review Report. 
(3) 

$ 238,698 
67,820 

480 
25 

13,750 
320,773 

183,162 
101,292 
284,454 

3,381 
12,989 
16,370 

300,824 

19,949 

139,595 

$ 159,544 

$ 10,000 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2.3 
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HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

Year ended June 30, 2016 

ProS!am Services Sue£2rt Services 

Total Program Management 
Client Services Education Services and General Fundraising Total 

Salaries and wages $ 67,807 s 45,586 s 113,393 s 31,301 $ 7,283 s 151,977 

Employee benefits 5,217 3,614 8,831 4,013 630 13,474 

Payroll taxes 5,206 3,500 8,706 2,401 561 11,668 

Rent 7,868 4,923 12,791 - 583 13,374 

Utilities 1,432 792 2,224 105 74 2,403 

Phone and internet 1,495 946 2,441 209 so 2,730 

Office Equipment 740 495 1,235 332 79 1,646 

Insunlllcc- directors & officers 686 459 1,145 310 73 1,528 

Insurance- office and general liability 818 544 1,362 369 88 1,819 

Training and staff development - 1,278 1,278 - 1,278 

Office supplies 283 335 618 283 91 992 

Postage and sh.ipping 72 87 159 91 96 346 

Computer expense 2,201 1,434 3,635 1,075 147 4,857 

Dues and subscriptions 80 207 287 45 1,252 1,584 

Payroll processing fees 1,070 708 1,778 485 108 2,371 

Bank charges 38 25 63 19 4 86 

Professional fees and consultants 7,000 7,000 - 7,000 

Advertising and promotion 
TraveVCiient transport 4,068 7,472 11,540 143 31 11,714 

CM emergency assistance 6,712 6,712 6,712 

HOPW A emergency assistance 14,467 14,467 - 14,467 

HOPWA PHP assistance 2,250 - 2,250 - - 2,250 

Privately funded emergency assistance 132 132 - - 132 

Program materials and supplies 7,307 12,257 19,564 208 19,772 

Substance abuse treatments 9,932 9,932 9,932 

Client incentives - 2,220 2,220 2,220 

Program camps & conferences 250 375 625 117 742 

In kind expense 13,600 - 13,600 150 13,750 

Allocated expenses 22.~31 14,035 ___ 36,46~- (38,275) 1,809 

Total expenses $ 183,162 $ 101,292 $ ;s~454 s _3,381 s 12,989 s 300,824 

See accompanying notes and Independent Accountant's Review Report. 
(4) 
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HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Year ended June 30,2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile change in nets assets to net 
cash provided or (used) by operating activities: 

Accounts receivable and grants receivable 
Prepaid and deposits 
Accounts payable 
Accrued wages and taxes 
Deferred revenue 

Net cash provided or (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Net cash provided or (used) by investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net cash provided or (used) by financing activities 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALNETS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash paid during the year for interest 

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 

Non-cash transactions: In-Kind income and expense (Note 1) 

s~ accompanying notes and Independent Accountant•s Review Report. 
(5) 

$ 19,949 

(182) 
(100) 
345 

1,248 
(3,500) 
17,760 

17,760 

134,424 

$ 152,184 

$ 

s 

$ 13,750 



HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20!6 

Note!. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Organization: 

The HIV I HCV Resource Center works to support people whose lives are affected by 
HIV/AIDS and Hepatitis C to live fully and with dignity, while halting the spread of these 
diseases through education, information and understanding. The agency's three major 
service areas include: HIV medical case management, HIV and Hepatitis C prevention 

education, and HIV and Hepatitis C testing. All services are free of charge and available to 
residents of Grafton, Sullivan, Coos counties in New Hampshire and Windsor and Orange 

counties in Vennont. 

The agency offers their case management clients transportation to medical and counseling 

appoinunents, nutritious food from their food bank, and financial assistance for housing, 
heat. utilities, food, clothing and medical needs. Educators offer risk reduction education 

through talks at community centers, schools and drug treatment programs. The 
organization's targeted testing and syringe exchange programs reach individuals at the 

greatest risk of acquiring HIV and Hepatitis C, and link those who have tested positive to 
medical care providers. 

The summary of significant accounting policies ofHIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. is 
presented to assist in understanding the Organization's financial statements. The financial 

statements and notes are representations ofHlV I HCV Resource Center, Inc.'s 
management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting 

policies conform to genemlly accepted accounting principles and have been consistently 
applied in the preparation of the financial statements. 

Basis of Accounting: 

The financial records for HIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. are maintained on the 
accrual basis of accounting. Consequently, revenues are recognized when earned and 

expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses: 

HIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. reports its expenses on a functional basis, showing 
basic program activities and support services. Expenses that can be identified with a 

specific program and support service are allocated directly according to their natural 

expenditure classification. Other expenses that are common to multiple functions are 
allocated by various bases. 

(6) 
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HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30.2016 

Note!. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Cash Equivalents: 

All bank accounts with maturity dates of less than three months are considered cash 

equivalents. 

Equipment and Depreciation: 

Equipment is recorded at cost of purchase or, if contributed, at fair market value at the 

date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions 

are recorded as restricted support. In the absence of such stipulation. contributions of 

equipment are recorded as unrestricted support. The Organization depreciates assets over 

a 5-39 year useful life using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was $0 for 

the year ended June 30, 2016. 

Support and Revenue: 

HIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. receives support primarily through grants from the 

Fedeml Government, the State ofVennont, and the State ofNew Hampshire. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 

from those estimates. 

Donated Materials and Services 

It is the intent ofHIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. to record the value of donated goods 

and services when there is an objective basis available to measure their value. For the 

year ended June 30,2016 the NH Food Bank and Willing Hands donated food in the 

amount of $13,600 and Lebanon Knitters donated various knitted items in the amount of 

$1 SO for a total of $13,750 in donated items. 

Advertising: 

The Organization expenses the costs of advertising as incurred. Advertising expense was 

$0 for the year ended June 30, 2016. 

(7) 
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lliV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2016 

Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF1CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Contributions and Net Assets 

HIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. has adopted FASB ASC 958-605 (fonnerly Statement of 
Financial Accounting standards No. 116, .. Accounting for contributions Received and 
Contributions Made"), (SFAS No. 116). In accordance with FASB ASC 958~605 
contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or pennanently 
restricted support depending upon the existence or nature of donor restrictions. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization 
that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are 
reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the fiscal year in 
which the contributions are recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are 
reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending upon the 
nature of the restrictions. When the restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are 
reclassified to unrestricted net assets. 

HIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. has also adopted FASB ASC 958-225-45-16 (formerly 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements ofNot-For­
Profit Organization'), (SFAS No. 117). 

Under these provisions, net assets and revenues, expenses, gains. and losses are classified 
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of 
the Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Unrestricted Net Assets- Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 

Temporarily restricted net assets- Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
may or will be met either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage oftime. 

Permanently restricted net assets- Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained pennanently by the Organization. Generally, the 
donors of these assets may or may not pennit the Organization to use all or part of the 
income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes. 

The Organization does not have any permanently or temporarily restricted net assets at 
June 30. 2016. 

(8) 
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HJV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2016 

Note!. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Income Tax Status: 

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c) (3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. However, any income from activities not directly related to the 
Organization's tax exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business taxable 
income. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction 
under Section 170 (b) (I) (A) of the Code. 

Note 2. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Note3. 

The Organization receives a substantial amount of its support from government agencies. 
A significant reduction in level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect 
on the Organization's programs and activities. Grants often require the fulfillment of 
certain conditions as set forth in the instrument of the grant Failure to fulfill the 
conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors. Although the return of funds is a 
possibility, the board of directors deems the contingency unlikely, since by accepting the 
grants and their terms, it has made a commitment to fulfill the provisions of the grant 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

At June 30,2016, the costs and related accumulated depreciation of property and 
equipment consisted of the following: 

Cost 

Equipment $ I 0 948 

Total 6130/16 $ 10,948 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

$ 10,948 

$ 10,948 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $0. 

(9) 
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HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30,2016 

Note 4. GRANTS RECEIVABLE 

Grants receivable represent grants which the Organization will receive within one year. Due to 

their current nature, no allowance is deemed necessary. At year end grants receivable were the 

following: 

NHHOPWA 
Grafton County 
NH Case Management 
VT Case Management 
CLEARJ 

Total Grants Receivable 

Note 5. DEFERRED REVENUE 

$ 1,675 
2,500 

11,646 
17,445 

749 
$ 34,015 

Deferred revenue is the result of cash receipts from grants, contributions and other income 

which has been received but not spent by year end. Revenue is recognized only to the extent 

that related expenses have been incurred. At year end the balance in deferred revenue was as 

follows: 

Ledyard NationaJ Bank 
Jack & Dorothy Byrne Foundation 

Total Deferred Revenue 

Note 6. LEASES 

$ 500 
20,000 

$ 20,500 

HIV I HCV Resource Center, Inc. leases its office space in Lebanon, New Hampshire. The 2 

year lease was signed in February of2014 and the lease payment was $1,082.00 per month for 
the first year and $1.114.46 per month for the second year until the lease expires in March of 
2016. 

The Organization also leases its copier througb Conway Office Solutions. The 5 year lease 

was signed in May of2011 and the lease payment is $137 per month. 

(10) 
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HIV I HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30,2016 

Note 7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 16, 2017, the date which the 

financial statements were available for issue. Management is not aware of any subsequent 
events which require disclosme. 

Note 8. UNCERTAINTY OF INCOME TAXES 

Management has eva1uated significant tax positions against criteria established by generally 

accepted accounting principles and believes there are no such tax positions requiring 

accounting recognition in the financial statements. Management does not believe its 
evaluation of tax positions will significantly change within twelve months of June 30, 

2016. 

Any changes in tax positions will be recorded when the ultimate outcome becomes known. 
The Organization's tax returns are subject to examination by taxing authorities generally 

for the years eoded June30, 2013 through June30, 2016. There were no income tax 

related interest or penalties incurred in 2016. 

(11) 
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12:38 PM 

11113/18 

Accrual Basis 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 

Profit & Loss 
July 2015 through June 2016 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

4000 · Restricted Income 
4001 • NH ·CASE MGMT 
4003 · NH HOPWA 
4004 · VT CASE MGMT 
4007 · VT HOPWA 
4006 · SEP 
4005 · VT CLEARI 
4010 ·ITP I TRL 
4008 · CTR (Counsel, Testing & Ref) 

4030 • Granite United Way 
4035 · Granite UW Women's Leadership 
4040 · Broadway Cares 
4045 · ottauquechee Foundation 
4047 · Syringe Access Fund 
4050 ·Samara Foundation 
4065 • Hanover NH Rotary Charities 
4070 · Claremont Savings & Loan 
4075 · Ledyard National Bank 

Total 4000 · Restricted Income 

4200 · Unrestricted Income 
4220 · Contributions from Individuals 
4225 · Corporate Sponsors 
4230 ·Town Funding 
4250 • J & D Byrne Foundation 
4260 · Grafton County 
4280 · NH Charitable Foundation 
4290 · Other Contributions 
4500 · Interest Income 
4600 · In Kind Income 

Total4200 · Unrestricted Income 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expense 
5000 · Personnel 

5010 ·Salaries 
5020 · Fica I Medicare 
5030 · Health Insurance 
5040 · Dental Insurance 
5050 · NH State Unemplmt Ta)les 
5060 · W/C Insurance 

Total 5000 ·Personnel 

6300 ·Other Program & Admin Expenses 
6001 ·Rent 
6002 · Utilities 
6006 · Phone & Internet 
6005 · Office Equipment 
6302a · Insurance--Directors & Officers 
6302b · Insurance--Office & Gen Liab 
6303 · Training & Staff Development 

6310 ·Office Supplies & Exp 
6315 · Postage & Shipping 
6320 · Computer Expenses 
6330 · Dues & Subscriptions 
6335 · Printing 
6340 · Payroll Processing Fees 
6350 · Bank Charges 
6400 · Prof Fees & Consultants 
6420 · Audit Fees 
6520 · Staff Travel & Non-Med Transpor 

Jui'15-Jun16 

43.634.70 
20,100.00 
74,373.49 
27,227.33 
18,701.00 
40.235.46 
14,426.14 

480.00 
6.905.06 
1,000.00 
5,000.00 
5.000.00 
2,875.00 
3,000.00 
1,000 00 
1.000.00 
1.000.00 

265.958.18 

5,252.29 
355 00 

3.450.00 
20,000.00 
10,000.00 

1.500.00 
482.82 

25.02 
13,749.62 

54.814 75 

320.772.93 

320,772.93 

151,97703 
11.626.25 

7,264.02 
1,959.84 

42.00 
4.249.99 

177.11913 

13.373.52 
2,403.23 
2.730.12 
1,646.28 
1.527.96 
1,819.17 
1,277.94 

991.88 
231.71 

4,856.67 
1,584.00 

114.00 
2.371 07 

86.00 
1.000.00 
6.000.00 
9.739 26 
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12:38 PM 

11/13/18 

Accrual Basis 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 

Profit & Loss 
July 2015 through June 2016 

6530 · Client Medical Transport 

6812 · CM Emergency Assistance 
6814 · HOPWA Emergency Assistance 

6816 · HOPWA PHP Assistance 
6818 ·Privately Funded Emer Assist 

6820 · Program Materials & Supplies 
6830 · Substance Abuse Treatments 
6840 ·Client Incentives 
6870 · Program Camps & Conferences 

6890 · In Kind Expense 

Total6300 ·Other Program &Admin Expenses 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Expense 

9910001 ·Allocated Expense (MP) 
9910002 • MGMT & GENERAL 
9910001 ·Allocated Expense (MP)- Other 

Total9910001 ·Allocated Expense (MP) 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

Jul '15- Jun 16 

1,97516 
6,711.54 

14,467.28 
2,250.00 

132 00 
19,772 45 

9,932.00 
2,220.00 

742.02 
13,749.62 

123,704.88 

300,824.01 

19,948.92 

38,275.47 
"38,275.47 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

19,948.92 

Page 2 
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12:34 PM 

11/13/18 

Accrual Basis 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 
Profit & Loss 

July 2017 through June 2018 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

4000 • Restricted Income 
4015 ·City of Lebanon 
4001 · NH- CASE MGMT 
4003 • NH HOPWA 
4004 · VT CASE MGMT 
4007 · VT HOPWA 
4006 • SEP 
4042 · NH SEP 
4005 • VT CLEAR! 
4010 ·ITP I TRL 
4030 · Granite United Way 
4040 • Broadway Cares 
4050 · Samara Foundation 
4065 · Hanover NH Rotary Charities 
4070 · Claremont Savings & Loan 

Total 4000 · Restricted Income 

4200 • Unrestricted Income 
4220 · Contributions from Individuals 
4225 • Corporate Sponsors 
4230 • Town Funding 
4250 · J & D Byrne Foundation 
4260 · Grafton County 
42go · Other Contributions 
4500 • Interest Income 

Total4200 ·Unrestricted Income 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expense 
5000 · Personnel 

5010 ·Salaries 
5020 · Fica I Medicare 
5030 · Health Insurance 
5040 · Dental Insurance 
5050 · NH State Unemplmt Taxes 
5060 · W/C Insurance 

Total 5000 ·Personnel 

6300 · Other Program & Admin Expenses 
6001 ·Rent 
6002 ·Utilities 
6006 · Phone & Internet 
6302a · Insurance-Directors & Officers 
6302b • Insurance--Office & Gen Uab 
6303 · Training & Staff Development 
6310 ·Office Supplies & Exp 
6315 ·Postage & Shipping 
6320 · Computer Expenses 
6330 · Dues & Subscriptions 
6340 · Payroll Processing Fees 
6350 ·Bank Charges 
6400 · Prof Fees & Consultants 
6450 · Advertising & Promotion 
6520 ·Staff Travel & Non-Med Transpor 
6530 ·Client Medical Transport 
6812 · CM Emergency Assistance 
6814 • HOPWA Emergency Assistance 
6816 · HOPWA PHP Asslstanc• 
6818 ·Privately Funded Emer Assist 
6820 ·Program Materials & Supplies 
6830 · Substance Abuse Treatments 

Jul '17 -Jun 18 

3,000.00 
43.934.82 
21.00000 
65,680.65 
35.123.88 
57,700 48 
16.000.00 

0.00 
8,040.93 
2,333.34 
7,500 00 
3,000.00 

500.00 
1,500.00 

265.314.10 

10,610.33 
13.60 

800.00 
20,000.00 
10,000.00 

400.00 
12.55 

41.836.48 

307,150.58 

307,150.58 

155,34142 
11,901.73 
7,562 64 
1,959.84 

24.07 
3,950 03 

180,739.73 

13,70922 
3,512.82 
2,858 86 
1,527.96 
3,835.02 

425 50 
1,093.96 

158 79 
2,493.33 
1,496.00 
2,623 25 

49 66 
1,020.00 

481.45 
8,565.20 
3,291.12 
9,843.18 

13.512.20 
550.00 

0.00 
19.790.73 
9,798.62 
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12:41 PM 

11/13118 

Accrual Basis 

HIVMHCV Resource Center Inc 

Balance Sheet 
As of June 30, 2016 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
1000 · MSB Cash Account 

1010 · MSB-Checking, Unrestricted 
1020 · MSB--Savings 

Total 1000 · MSB Cash Account 

Total Checking!Savings 

Other Current Assets 
1210 ·Grants Receivable 
1275 ·Security Deposits 

1275A • Rivermiii-Rent 

Total1275 ·Security Deposits 

1290 ·Prepaid Expenses 
1290A ·Prepaid Ins- Office & GIL 
1290B ·Prepaid Ins·· WC 
1290C ·Prepaid Ins·· Dir & Officers 

Total1290 · Prej:Jald Expenses 

1300 ·Equipment 
1301 ·Equipment-Depreciation 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

UABIUTlES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

2000 ·AlP 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 
2500 · Unearned Grant Income 
2400 • Payroll Liabilities 

2402 · Soc Sec f Medicare 
2406 · Accrued Wages 

Total2400 ·Payroll Liabilities 

Total Other Culll!nt Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
3200 • Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Jun 30, 16 

102,140_20 
50,043.51 

152,183.71 

152.183.71 

34,015.46 

1.400.00 

1 ,400 00 

775.00 
943_25 

1,185.04 

2,903 30 

10,947 85 
-10,947.85 

38,318 76 

190.502.47 

190,502.47 

1,715.84 

1,715.84 

20,500.00 

621.25 
8,120.91 

8,742.16 

29,242.16 

30.958.00 

30,958.00 

139,595.55 
19,948 92 

159,544.47 

190,502.47 
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12:37 PM 

11/13/18 

Accrual Basis 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 
Profit & Loss 

July 2016 through June 2017 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

4000 · Restricted Income 
4015 • City of Lebanon 
4001 · NH -CASE MGMT 
4003 · NH HOPWA. 
4004 · VT CASE MGMT 
4007 · VT HOPWA. 
4006 · SEP 
4005 · VT CLEA.Rl 
4010 · ITP I TRL 
4008 · CTR (Counsel, Testing & Ref) 
4030 · Granite United Way 
4040 · Broadway Cares 
4047 · Syringe Access Fund 
4050 • Samara Foundation 
4065 · Hanover NH Rotary Charities 
4075 · Ledyard National Bank 

Total4000 · Restricted Income 

4200 · Unrestricted Income 
4220 · Contributions from Individuals 
4225 · Corporate Sponsors 
4230 ·Town Funding 
4250 · J & D Byrne Foundation 
4260 · Grafton County 
4275 · Canaday Family Charitable Trust 
4280 · NH Charitable Foundation 
4290 · Other Contributions 
4500 · Interest Income 

Total4200 ·Unrestricted Income 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expense 
5000 · Personnel 

5010 ·Salaries 
5020 ·Fica I Medicare 
5030 • Health Insurance 
5040 · Dental Insurance 
5050 · NH State Unemplmt Taxes 
5060 · W/C Insurance 

Total5000 ·Personnel 

6300 • other Program & Admin Expenses 
6001 ·Rent 
6002 · Utilities 
6006 • Phone & Internet 
6302a • Insurance-Directors & Officers 
6302b · Insurance--Office & Gen Liab 
6303 · Training & Staff Development 
6310 ·Office Supplies & Exp 
6315 ·Postage & Shipping 
6320 · Computer Expenses 
6330 • Dues & Subscriptions 
6335 • Printing 
6340 ·Payroll Processing Fees 
6350 · Bank Charges 
6400 • Prof Fees & Consultants 
6420 • Audit Fees 
6450 · Advertising & Promotion 
6520 · Staff Travel & Non-Med Transpor 
6530 ·Client Medical Transport 
6812 · CM Emergency Assistance 

Jui"16-Jun17 

3,000.00 
43,934.82 
23,050.00 
70,808.69 
31,017.89 
34,500.00 
19,818.91 
14,191.00 

30.00 
10,032 83 
7,500.00 
2,875.00 
3,000 00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

265,759.14 

6,896.51 
352.50 
800.00 

20,000.00 
10,000.00 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 

225.00 
24.96 

40,298.97 

306,058.11 

306,058.11 

155,834.58 
11,929.64 
6,486.54 
1,959.84 

33.80 
6,408.51 

182,652.91 

13,440 39 
2,731.10 
2,909.33 
1,586.54 
1,979.00 

200.00 
1.093.93 

357.94 
1,828.02 

638.00 
220.00 

2,580.58 
103.25 
700.00 

4,100.00 
0.00 

7,088.32 
2,595.08 
7,852.73 
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12:37 PM 

11113118 

Accrual Basis 

HIV~HCV Resource Center Inc 

Profit & Loss 
July 2016 through June 2017 

6814 • HOPWAEmergency Assistance 
6816 · HOPWA PHP Assistance 
6818 · Privately Funded Emer Assist 
6820 • Program Materials & Supplies 
6830 · Substance Abuse Treatments 
6840 · Client Incentives 
6870 · Program Camps & Conferences 

Total6300 ·other Program & Admin Expenses 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Expense 

9910001 ·Allocated Expense (MP) 
9910002 · MGMT & GENERAL 
9910001 · Allocated Expense (MP) ·Other 

Total 9910001 · Allocated Expense (MP) 

Total other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

Jul'16 -Jun 17 

17,888.98 
2,666.94 

25.00 
18,318.05 
8,204.94 
2,470.00 

174.00 

101,752.12 

284,405.03 

21,653.08 

40,593 88 
-40.593 88 

o_oo 

0.00 

0.00 

21,653.08 
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12:42 PM 

11113/18 

Accrual Ba5is 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 

Balance Sheet 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 

As of June 30, 2017 

1000 · MSB Cash Account 
1010 · MSB-Checking, Unrestricted 
1020 · MSB--Savings 

Total1000 · MSB Cash Account 

Total Checking/Savings 

Other Current Assets 
1210 ·Grants Receivable 
1275 ·Security Deposits 

1275A · Rivermiii-Rent 

Total1275 ·Security Deposits 

1290 ·Prepaid Expenses 
1290A ·Prepaid Ins- Office & GiL 
12908 ·Prepaid Ins- WC 
1290C ·Prepaid Ins- Dir & Officers 

Total1290 ·Prepaid Expenses 

1300 ·Equipment 
1301 ·Equipment-Depreciation 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILlTIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

2000 ·AlP 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 
2500 • Unearned Grant Income 
2400 ·Payroll Liabilities 

2402 · Soc Sec I Medicare 
2406 · Accrued Wages 

Total2400 ·Payroll Liabilities 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
3200 · Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Jun 30, 17 

110,855 77 
50,068.47 

160,924.24 

160.924.24 

43,956.04 

1,400.00 

1,400.00 

860.00 
968.75 

1,204.50 

3.033.25 

10,947.85 
·10,947.85 

48,389.29 

209,313.53 

209,313.53 

4,900.10 

4,900.10 

20,000.00 

228.54 
2,987.34 

3.215.88 

____ 2_3._21_5_.8_8 

28,115.98 

28,115.98 

159,544.47 
21,653.08 

181.197.55 

209,313.53 
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12:34 PM 

11/13118 

Accrual Basis 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 
Profit & Loss 

July 2017 through June 2018 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

4000 • Restricted income 
4015 · City of Lebanon 
4001 • NH -CASE MGMT 
4003 · NH HOPWA 
4004 · VT CASE MGMT 
4007 • VT HOPWA 
4006 • SEP 
4042 · NH SEP 
4005 • VT CLEARI 
4010 ·ITP I TRL 
4030 • Granite United Way 
4040 · Broadway Cares 
4050 ·Samara Foundation 
4065 • Hanover NH Rotary Charities 
4070 ·Claremont Savings & Loan 

Total4000 · Restricted Income 

4200 • Unrestricted Income 
4220 • Contributions from Individuals 
4225 · Corporate Sponsors 
4230 · Town Funding 
4250 · J & D Byrne Foundation 
4260 • Grafton County 
4290 · Other Contributions 
4500 ·Interest Income 

Total4200 ·Unrestricted Income 

Total income 

Gross Profit 

Expense 
5000 • Personnel 

5010 ·Salaries 
5020 · Fica I Medicare 
5030 · Health Insurance 
5040 ·Dental Insurance 
5050 • NH State Unemplmt Taxes 
5060 • W/C Insurance 

Total 5000 • Personnel 

6300 • Other Program & Admin Expenses 
6001 ·Rent 
6002 • Utilities 
6006 · Phone & Internet 
6302a · Insurance-Directors & Officers 
6302b ·Insurance-Office & Gen Uab 
6303 ·Training & Staff Development 
6310 ·Office Supplies & Exp 
6315 ·Postage & Shipping 
6320 · Computer Expenses 
6330 • Dues & Subscriptions 
6340 • Payroll Processing Fees 
6350 ·Bank Charges 
6400 ·Prof Fees & Consultants 
6450 · Advertising & Promotion 
6520 · Staff Travel & Non-Mad Transpor 
6530 • Client Medical Transport 
6812 • CM Emergency Assistance 
6814 • HOPWA Emergency Assistance 
6816 · HOPWA PHP Assistance 
6818 · Privately Funded Emer Assist 
6820 • Program Materials & Supplies 
6830 • Substance Abuse Treatments 

Jul '17- Jun 18 

3,000.00 
43,934.82 
21,000.00 
65,680.65 
35,123.88 
57,700.48 
16,000.00 

0.00 
8,040.93 
2,333.34 
7,500.00 
3,000.00 

500.00 
1,500.00 

265,314.10 

10,610.33 
13.60 

800.00 
20,000.00 
10,000.00 

400.00 
12.55 

41,836.48 

307,150.58 

307.150.58 

155.341.42 
11,901.73 
7,562.64 
1.959.84 

24.07 
3,950.03 

180.739.73 

13,709.22 
3,512.82 
2.858.86 
1.527.96 
3.835.02 

425.50 
1.093.96 

158.79 
2.493.33 
1,496.00 
2.623.25 

49.66 
1,020.00 

481.45 
8,565.20 
3,291.12 
9,843.18 

13,512.20 
550.00 

0.00 
19.790.73 
9.798.62 
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12:34 PM 

11/13/18 

Accrual Basis 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 
Profit & Loss 

July 2017 through June 2018 

6840 · Client Incentives 
6870 • Program Camps & Conferences 

Total6300 ·other Program & Admin Expenses 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
other Expense 

9910001 ·Allocated Expense (MP) 
9910002 · MGMT & GENERAL 
9910001 ·Allocated Expense (MP) ·Other 

Total9910001 ·Allocated Expense (MP) 

Total Other Expense 

Net other Income 

Net Income 

Jul '17- Jun 1 B 

3,650.00 
325.00 

104,611 87 ------
285,351.60 

21,798 98 

33,670.53 
-33,670.53 

0.00 
----~ 

_____ ooo 

0.00 

21,798.98 
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12:42 PM 

11/13/18 

Accrual Basis 

HIV-HCV Resource Center Inc 
Balance Sheet 
As of June 30,2018 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
1000 · MSB Cash Account 

1010 • MSB-Checking, Unrestricted 
1020 · MSB--Savings 

Total 1000 · MSB Cash Account 

Total Checking/Savings 

Other Current Assets 
1210 ·Grants Receivable 
1275 ·Security Deposits 

1275A · Rivermiii-Rent 

Total1275 ·Security Deposits 

1290 ·Prepaid Expenses 
1290A ·Prepaid Ins-- Office & GIL 
1290B ·Prepaid Ins- WC 
1290C · Prepaid Ins - Dir & Officers 

Total1290 ·Prepaid Expenses 

1300 · Equipment 
1301 ·Equipment-Depreciation 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

2000 ·AlP 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 
2500 ·Unearned Grant Income 
2400 ·Payroll Liabilities 

2402 · Soc Sec I Medicare 
2406 · Accrued Wages 

Total2400 ·Payroll Liabilities 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
3200 · Unrestricted Net Assets 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Jun 30, 18 

117,749.44 
50,066.02 

167,815.46 

167,815.46 

40,322.87 

1,400.00 

1,400 00 

-706.02 
1,097.72 
1,322.54 

1,714.24 

10.S47.85 
-10,947.85 

43,437.11 

211,25257 

211,252.57 

3,040.16 

3,040.16 

2,000.00 

228.54 
2,987.34 

3.215.88 

5,215.88 

8.256.04 

8,256.04 

181,197.55 
21,79898 

202,996.53 

211,252.57 
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(.., .... 
7.2.3.2.9 

Certificate of Authenticity: 

Our agency is in sound financial condition. We are currently undergoing an independent 
Financial Audit for our Fiscal Year 2017, and plan to complete one as well for Fiscal 
Year 2018. 

To the best of my knowledge, all of our uncertified Financial Statements are correct in 
all material aspects. 

Laura Byrne 
Executive Director 
HIV/HCV Resource Center 



HIV/HCV Resource Center 2019 Board of Directors 

Sarah E. Lord, Ph.D., President 
I 08 Brook Hollow 
Hanover, NH 03755 
Home: 603-277-9069 
sarah.e.lord@dartmouth.edu 

As an Assistant Professor of Psychiatry and Director of Dissemination & Implementation Core 
in The Center for Technology & Behavioral Health at Dartmouth Psychiatric Research Center, 
Sarah's research focuses on the development, evaluation, and sustainable dissemination of 
technology-delivered assessment, prevention, and behavioral intervention tools for adolescent, 
young adult, and parent populations, primarily in the areas of substance abuse, HIV, and sexual 
health. 

Ryan Tremblay, Treasurer 
64 High Street 
P.O. Box 786 
Quechee, VT 05091 
Home: 802-698-8239 
Work: 603-443-8723 
ryan.tremblay@mascomabank.com 

As a mortgage loan office at Mascoma Bank. Ryan contributes his financial knowledge to the 
H2RC Board of Directors . 

. John Morris, Secretary 
37 Thompson Road 
East Corinth. VT 05040 
Home: 802-439-6599 
morrisvt@tops-tele.com 

Recently retired as the pastor at St. Martin's Episcopal Church in Fairlee VT, John has served 
four Episcopal Churches on a part-time basis since 1968, one of which was in East Harlem, NY. 
He taught the primary grades of elementary school for 30 years before retiring 1999. He has 
supported programs that work with people living with HIV-AIDS fOr many years. 

Andres Aguilera 
24 Pine Street 
Gorham, NH 03581 
Cell: 603-433-3011 
andres.aguilera.med@dartmouth.edu 

A medical resident at Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth, Andres is interested in 
preventing the transmission of infectious disease and has worked with people living with HIV in 
multiple capacities. 



John Sanders, M.D. 
96 Franklin Hill Road 
Lyme, NH 03768 
Home: 603-795-4325 
john. h. sanders.jr@dartmo uth. ed u 

A retired physician, John volunteers at the Good Neighbor Health Clinic, providing medical care 
for uninsured and low- income individuals, in White River Junction VT. 

Richard Waddell, D.Sc., M.Sc. 
Hartland Four Corners 
P.O. Box 101 
Hartland, VT 05049 
richard.d.waddell@dartmouth.edu 

Recently retired as an Associate Professor of Medicine and Associate Director of DarDar 
International Programs at Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth, Richard maintains a keen 
interest in global health, research bioethics, HIV/AIDS and social justice. 



LAURA BYRNE 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: 

Executive Director: HIV/HCV Resource Center (2013- present) 
Responsible for program management, fundraising/development, financial management, 
agency administration and personnel management as well as education, networking and 
advocacy for this non-profit AIDS Service Organization in Lebanon, N.H. 

Prevention and Education Director: HIV/HCV Resource Center (2010-present) 
Responsible for implementing HIV prevention education programs and managing the agency's 
syringe exchange and overdose prevention programs. Programs include CDC-approved "Social 
Networks Testing" (incentive-based networking technique to encourage high-risk individuals to 
get tested for HIV), and "Healthy Relationships'' (five-session workshop to help people living 
with HIV make decisions on issues ofHIV status disclosure and safer sex practices). I also give 
HIV and Hepatitis C prevention talks and distribute naloxone at drug treatment facilities and 
community events. 

Deputy Director: Village Health Works (2006-2009) 
Maintained relationships with donors, coordinated the efforts of volunteers in several countries, and 
wrote grant proposals for a non-profit organization that built and operates a health clinic in Burundi, 
Africa. 

Business Manager: Harp and Co. Graphic Design 
Managed a small graphic design firm (2005-2009) and a commercial photography studio (2005-
2007). Responsibilities included Photo Shop design, printing press production oversight, color 
matching, client communication and bookkeeping. 

EDUCATION: 
1991 
1988 
1981 

LANGUAGES: 

Dipl6me d' Etudes Fran~aises, Universite des Sciences I Iumaines de Strasbourg, France 
M.A., Boston University, Department of Anthropology 
B.A., Colby College, English major and Biology minor 

French: advanced reading, writing. speaking; 
Indonesian (Bahasa lndonesi<t): working capability 

MEMBERSIIIP AND AFFILIATIONS: 
Board Member: Stepping Stone and Next Step Peer Support & Crisis Respite Centers 
Board Member: Interplay Jaa and Arts 
Finance Committee C'Money Plan-If'): Faerie Camp Destiny 
Member, Vermont Department of Health Comprehensive Syringe Service Program Working Group 
Member, Vermont HIV Community Advisory Group 
Member, New Hampshire HIV Planning Group 



Ryan Tristam Richards 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

July 20 I 0- Present HIV/HCV Resource Center Lebanon, NH 
Medical Case Manager 
Provided comprehensive case management services for people living with HIV/AIDS. Collaborated with 
medical providers and service providers from other non-profits to create, implement, monitor and evaluate 
treatment plans designed to enhance treatment adherence and quality of life. Assisted individuals in 
gaining access to medical services, insurance, food assistance, financial assistance, transportation services, 
mental health services and other support systems. Worked with clients of varying ability, tailoring 
management style to particular needs of each client. Prepared annual, biannual and quarterly reports for 
state and federal agencies and maintained financial records. Maintained extensive client files including 
demographic socioeconomic and financial information. Managed confidential information adhering to 
HIPAA regulations. Utilized computer software specific to Medical Case Management to create reports 
and track and interpret data. Became knowledgeable of pertinent state and federal guidelines and laws in 
order to implement and deliver programs efficiently and legally. Provided HIV testing and counseling to 
individuals at an increased risk of acquiring or transmitting HlV. Researched and applied for state, federal 
and private grants. Operated syringe support programs (SSP), and participated in the development of SSP. 

July 2009- June 2010 Brookhaven Treatment and Learning Center for Boys Chelsea, VT 
Residential Counselor 
Collaborated with clinical and academic staff to create and implement individual treatment plans for 
young boys with behavioral and cognitive limitations in both an academic and residential setting. 
Provided a safe and nurturing environment that fostered academic and social emotional learning. Provided 
constant supervision and behavioral management. Facilitated group therapy sessions. Managed and 
administered resident medication and maintained medical logs. Provided guidance and support to co­
workers. 

June 2006- June 2009 Becket Family of Senrices: Mount Prospect Academy Plymouth, NH 
Teacher, Paraprofessional 
Modeled and taught adult living skills to youth with emotional and behavioral disabilities in a residential 
setting. Supervised and led on/otT campus activities and transitions throughout the day. Provided 
emotional support for students in crisis. Collaborated with classroom teachers on the implementation of 
daily lesson plans. Developed and designed lessons on leadership. history. philosophy, psychology and art 
for students with emotional and behavioral disabilities. Implemented and revised behavioral modification 
systems within the classroom setting. Collaborated with counselors, residential directors and other 
teachers regarding students' progress within the program. Problem solved with academic team on student 
issues and needs. Advocated and initiated the use of the School Wide Information System (a behavioral 
data collection system) for the entire school. Provided crisis intervention and active listening to all youth. 

EDUCATION 

University of Maine at Farmington; graduated 2006; Farmington, Maine 
Bachelor of Arts: History 

Franklin Pierce University; graduated 2018, Rindge, NH 
Master of Business Administration 



Summary: 

Wanda Knudsen 

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICA TlONS 

• Dependable and dedicated worker 
• Good human relation skills 

• Good supervisory skills 
• Ability to work independently or as a team member 

• Commitment to quality work 
• Strict attention to detail while understanding the bigger picture 

• Ability to look at potential gains and impacts of change 

10/10 to present: NH Medical Case Manager 
HIV/HCV Resource Center, Lebanon, NH 

Collaboration with Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center to give quality care to current 

clients, engaging new clients in care, and re-engaging clients who have fallen out of care; 

working with clients who are 1-ITV+: transporting them to and from medical appointments 

and to get medications; assisting clients in getting connected to mental health and/or 

substance abuse counseling; helping them find and get into safe and adequate housing; 

assisting them in getting connected with social service agencies and state/federal 

agencies; assisting them in signing up for insurance; advocacy; phone support for clients 

dealing with difficult situations; problem solving with clients to help them get their needs 

met; quarterly reporting to the NH CARE Program; semi-81Ulual reporting to the 

HOPWA program. 

1/12 to present: Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor 
VT 

Screening clients; assessments; treatment plans; out-patient substance abuse counseling; 

referraJs into in-patient treatment; collaborating with area social service agencies and 

referring agencies. Peer supervision. 

9108 to 12111: Certified Apprentice Substance Abuse Counselor 
KJME Associates, Springfield, VT 

Screening and assessing clients; treatment plans; group and individual counseling; 

collaborating with referring agencies. Supervised by a licensed substance abuse and 

menta] health counselor. 



8/01 to 8108: Diversion and Alcohol Safety Program Manager 
Valley Court Diversion Programs, White River JWlction, VT 

Screen clients in court and explain the Diversion process; schedule community board 
hearings; prepare paperwork for hearings by summarizing police reports, contacting 
victims and police to get their input into the cases; facilitate Board hearings; prepare 
contracts for clients; oversee contract compliance; volunteer retention; volunteer 
trainings; keep records of all interactions involving clients; explain legal and 
organizational requirements for the Alcohol Safety Program and assemble appropriate 
paperwork; screen people prior to coming to class; facilitate the Alcohol Safety Program, 
which was an educational program for underage people caught consuming or possessing 
alcohol. 

4/93 to 8101: Shelter Manager 
Headrest, Lebanon, NH 

Managed 8-bed shelter serving people with substance abuse, mental health, dual~ 
diagnosis, and general and chronic homelessness issues; case management services; 
assisted clients in identifying needs and how to address them; formed and monitored case 
plans; documented case histories, including short and long term goals with clients; crisis 
counseling; drug testing; client advocacy; worked with clients to successfully reintegrate 
them into the community; facilitated a skills group with clients; supervised five part-time 
employees; collaborated with other programs within the agency; networked with other 
social service agencies; record keeping; reported to various funding sources; statistics; 
assisted in grant writing; on~call rotation with other clinical staff. 

8/00 to 8/01: Interim Hotline Manager 
Headrest, Lebanon, NH 

Scheduled hotline shifts to provide 24-hour coverage; reviewed paperwork from phone 
calls and debriefed difficult calls with hotline workers. 

12191 to 4/93: Crisis Counselor 
Headrest, Lebanon, NH 

Crisis counseling with hotline and walk~in clients: active listening; problem solving; 
drug, alcohol, and other addictions; suicide; domestic violence; child abuse; mental health 

issues; homelessness; infonnation and referral; assisted in training hotline volunteers; 
worked in shelter doing crisis counseling and support for lodgers; case management for 
lodgers. 

EDUCATION 

Springfield College: Master of Science in Human Services with a focus on mental 

health. 



Randolph Scott Moser 

Catalyst for positive change and collaborative team leader with the ability to create safe spaces where others 
are eager to share ideas, the drive to bring out the best in people, and a passion to help clients succeed. 

PROFESSIONAl SKILLS 

• Program Development, Strategic Planning & Senior leadership 

o Developed and implemented successful naloxone distribution initiative resulting in a 10 percent 

decrease in YTY fatal drug overdoses in NH, the first reduction in fatalities since 2012 

o Worked with key stakeholders across systems and throughout a vast geographic range to 

develop high-functioning workgroups, draft strategic plans, and synthesize diverse perspectives 

o Developed tools and reports and suggested executive changes to program and policy design 

resulting in positive systems change 

o Evaluated emerging behavioral health trends, changes in demographic profiles, and state, 
' federal and private insurers' reimbursement to drive real-world improvements 

o Crafted strategic goals (including program de live rabies and multi-year communications and 

development plans) using appropriate metrics 

o Designed online training opportunities for partner organizations, led board development and 

orientation, worked with membership base within a service culture of care, and created broad­

based coalitions 

• Grant Writing & Procurement of Funds 

o Designed and executed fundraising strategies for state, municipal, corporate and individual 

giving, securing more than $200,000 in FY 2015 

o Secured high-dollar federal, state, and foundation grants f contracts (capturing $1,000,000 in 

state grant contracts and providing vital help to retain crisis services with potential multi-million 

dollar impact in FY 2015), reviewed contracts, tracked milestones, and completed grant and 

funder requests 

• Marketing, Public Relations, and Website Design 

o Developed the NH Recovery Hub, the first state website of its kind promoting recovery support 

services 

o Designed multi-channel campaigns with measurable outcomes (>3.5 percent response rate on 

direct mail, 20 percent open rate on e-mail campaigns, and a dramatic increase in website 

visitations) 

o Drew on existing agency, state, and local data to create segmented, strategic, high-impact 

communications 



EMPLOYMENT 

New Hampshire Dept. of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services 

Health Promotion Advisor 

Concord, NH 

Crisis & Counseling Centers 

Director of Development & Communications 

Augusta, ME 

Telco Community Credit Union 

Marketing Manager 

Asheville, NC 

Highwater Clays 

Public Relations Manager 

Asheville, NC 

Asheville Convention & Visitors Bureau 

Online Content Editor 

Asheville, NC 

EDUCATION 

Master's in liberal Studies 

Bachelor's in English 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 

• State University of New York's Nonprofit Management Certificate 

• Yellow Belt lean Six Sigma 

• Kennebec leadership Institute 

2016-Current 

201()-2016 

2008-2010 

2007-2008 

2005-2006 

The University of New Hampshire 

Durham, NH 

The University of Southern Maine 

Portland, ME 

• YES Summit on the Impacts Strategic Planning for Millennia Is {CUNA) 

VOLUNTEER BOARDS & (OMMITIEES 

• Brigid's House of Hope (Marketing and Development working group) 

• STARS (Scholarship Trust for Addiction Recovery Services, Inc.) (Website development) 

• NH DHHS Website Redesign Committee (Committee Member) 

• NH Capital Region Habitat for Humanity (Board) 

• United Way of Kennebec Valley (Communications Committee) 

• United Way of Mid-Maine (Communications Committee) 

• The Kennebec Valley Humane Society (Fundraising Committee) 



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL 

NH Department of Health and Human Services 

Contractor Name: HIV/HCV Resource Center 

Name of Contract: RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU-01 H2RC 


